AGENDA

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 08, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

INVOCATION- VICE-MAYOR CANDICE N. JOHNSON

CALL TO ORDER — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR

ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILWOMAN CATHY D. PATTISON
7:00 P.M. RECESS (if necessary)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA (requires motion and roll call vote)
CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes of the work session and the regular meeting of August 25, 2025, and the work
session of August 26, 2025 (requires motion and vote)

CITIZENS' PERIOD
PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. Consider the reappointment of Ellen McDaniel to the Wytheville Redevelopment
and Housing Authority (term expires September 8, 2025)

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones

2. Consideration to reappoint Ellen McDaniel to the Wytheville Redevelopment and
Housing Authority (new term expires September 8, 2029) (requires motion and vote)

|

Consider the appointment of a member to the Wytheville Tree Advisory
Committee to fill the unexpired term of James Cohen (term expires May 14, 2027)

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones

2. Consideration by the Town Council to appoint a member to the Wytheville Tree
Advisory Committee to fill the unexpired term of James Cohen (term expires May 14,
2027) (requires motion and vote)

|©

Consider the request of Shane Terry to use the Main Street sidewalks, from
Tazewell Street to 4th Street, on Saturday, October 18, 2025, to conduct an Art
at the Crossroads event




10.

11.

12.

13.

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton

2. Consideration by the Town Council to approve the request of Shane Terry to use
the Main Street sidewalks, from Tazewell Street to 4th Street, on Saturday, October
18, 2025, to conduct an Art at the Crossroads event (requires motion and vote)

D. Consider the adoption of a resolution regarding the Lithia Road Sidewalk
Connector Project
1. Consideration by the Town Council to adopt a resolution regarding the Lithia Road
Sidewalk Connector Project (requires motion and roll call vote)

REPORTS

A. Upcoming Meetings - CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK BRANDI JONES

OTHER BUSINESS

A.

|

C.

D.

Continued discussion regarding the Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025
1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin
2. No action required at this time

Continued discussion regarding the purchase of a boom flail tractor for the
Public Works Department

1. Report/Presentation by Councilwoman Holly E. Atkins
2. No action required at this time
Council Member Time

Miscellaneous

CLOSED MEETING

A. Closed Meeting pursuant to 8 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel
regarding specific legal matters; pursuant to 8§ 2-2-3711 (A.) (19.) Discussion
regarding security in Town facilities (requires motion and vote)

B. Certification of Closed Meeting (requires motion and roll call vote)

ADJOURNMENT




Section 7, ItemA.




Section 7, ItemA.

MINUTES

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION

MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2025 AT 5:30 PM

CounNciL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES

Persons Present:

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town
Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney Paul Cassell, Deputy Clerk Lauren Bedwell,
Police Officer Darren Umberger, Police Officer Nick Anderson

Persons Absent:

Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

2. RE:!ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED

A. Approval of Agenda

Mayor Taylor advised that the first item on the agenda is the Approval of Agenda,
and this required a motion and approval by the Council. She inquired if there was a
motion to approve the Work Session agenda as presented.

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

B. Meet and Greet Session

Mr. James Savesky - Wytheville Economic Development Authority (WEDA)

Mr. James Savesky attended the meeting to hold a Meet and Greet Session with the
Town Council to be considered for appointment to the Wytheville Economic
Development Authority (WEDA). Mayor Taylor proceeded to ask Mr. Savesky a
series of questions regarding his personal interest in serving on the WEDA. Mr.
Savesky stated that he was raised in Indiana, went to college in Missouri and has
lived across the country for various jobs. He noted that he has held positions like
Budget Analyst and Head of Marketing and Research for companies like RCA
Corporation, Steak and Shake and Jack in the Box. Mr. Savesky advised that he,
also, owned his own businesses in North Carolina. He commented that he and his
wife moved to Wytheville about seven and a half years ago, when she accepted a job




Section 7, ItemA.

working at the Wythe County Community Hospital. Mr. Savesky stated that he feels it
is his civic duty to give back to the community, and he thinks his background fits best
with the WEDA. He noted that he is prepared to dedicate the time that is needed to
this board, and that he can attend the meetings regularly. A discussion was held
regarding the kind of growth that Mr. Savesky and the Council would like to see for
Wytheville within the next five years. The Council thanked Mr. Savesky for his
willingness to serve on the WEDA.

RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (5:49
p.m.)

Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager

Lauren E. Bedwell, Deputy Clerk




Section 7, ItemA.

MINUTES

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins

MEMBERS ABSENT:
Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

OTHERS PRESENT:

Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town
Attorney Paul Cassell, Deputy Clerk Lauren Bedwell, Director of Public Utilities and
Engineering Billy Anderson, Public Works Director Kevin Hackler, Computer Operations
Manager Ron Jude, Police Officer Darren Umberger, Police Officer Nick Anderson, Blake
Caldwell, Sara Roberson, Jenni Lauria, Bill Leighton, Arthur Johnson, Janet S. Johnson,
Kerry Eans, Tommy Atkins, Glenda Salerno

2. RE:CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.

3. RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present.

4. RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilwoman Atkins.

5. RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00
p.m. scheduled recess.

6. RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor Taylor
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was




Section 7, ItemA.

approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman
Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST
11, 2025, AND THE WORK SESSION OF AUGUST 12, 2025

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the work
session and the regular meeting of August 11, 2025, and the work session of August
12, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the consent agenda as
presented.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins.

RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there
are citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during
Citizens' Period. She requested Mr. Blake Caldwell to come to the podium and state his
name and address for the recording of the minutes.

Mr. Blake Caldwell was recognized and stated that he lives on Walnut Road in Wytheville.
He noted that he attended the last Town Council meeting to address issues they are
having with the culvert on Walnut Road. Mr. Caldwell noted that he is attending this
meeting to inquire if there is an update regarding the Town providing assistance with the
installation of a new culvert on Walnut Road. He commented that over the last couple of
weeks, he has been in contact with Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin and Director of
Public Utilities and Engineering Billy Anderson. Mr. Caldwell stated that he had an
informative discussion with Director Anderson regarding some history about their
neighborhood and the original installation of the culvert. He advised that the Town installed
two (2) iron pipes that are currently still in place. Mr. Caldwell stated that Director
Anderson advised him that he has been providing maps to Town staff and to the Council to
aid in the discussion regarding the culvert issues. He then discussed some research that
he had performed for his neighborhood in the Flood Database for Virginia. Mayor Taylor
stated that Town staff has helped the Council understand what is going on. She noted that
the Council will be discussing this later in the evening in a Closed Meeting. Mayor Taylor
thanked Mr. Caldwell for his comments.

Mr. Bill Leighton and his wife Jenni Lauria were recognized and stated that they live on
Walnut Road. Mr. Leighton advised that they are offering their support for their neighbors.
He noted that the neighborhood residents met after the last Town Council meeting to
discuss what they talked about at that Council meeting regarding the culvert issues. Ms.
Lauria commented that she will send pictures and videos of the most recent flood event,
within the last week, to Town staff for them to review. Mayor Taylor stated that she feels
like the residents of Walnut Road have gotten their attention, and they are working to help
the Walnut Road residents as much as they can. Councilwoman Atkins advised that she




Section 7, ItemA.

would like to thank the Public Works staff for the assistance they have been able to
provide to the Walnut Road residents. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Leighton and Ms. Lauria
for their comments.

Mr. Arthur Johnson was recognized and stated that the Harrison Memorial Lodge was
brought up at the last Town Council meeting to possibly be torn down. He noted that this
building housed the first black beauty parlor in town. Mr. Johnson advised that he was a
member of the Harrison Memorial Lodge, and that he feels like there are buildings around
town that are in worse shape than the former Lodge building. He commented that they
have tried to reach someone with the Grand Lodge in Richmond but have not been
successful. Mr. Johnson noted that he has their number and that he will try to call them
again. He stated that he thinks the Town has access to grants that could help with making
improvements to this building. Mr. Johnson advised that the former Lodge building could
potentially be used as a Black Masonry Museum. He noted that he thinks that would be a
good location and building for a museum, and that he does not think it should be torn
down. Mayor Taylor stated that she is the one who brought this topic up at the last Council
meeting, however, she did not say that she wanted it to be torn down. She noted that she
had asked for an update regarding the property, since it is vacant. Mayor Taylor
commented that Building Official Spraker has been speaking with people from Richmond
regarding this matter. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if Assistant Town Manager Holeton
could briefly discuss vacant buildings and homes that are in town, and how they will be
addressed. Assistant Town Manager Holeton advised that the Town has a series of codes,
and that some of those codes enable the Town to abate nuisances in the town. She noted
that the Town has not discussed a specific action regarding this property. Vice-Mayor
Johnson inquired of Mayor Taylor regarding complaints she received about this location.
Mayor Taylor stated that she was asked what the Town is going to do with the former
Lodge building. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired what the person meant when they asked
what the Town is going to do with the building. Mayor Taylor noted that she was not sure
what they meant, however, she told them that it is not the Town's building to do something
with it. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she was not sure how the former Lodge building
was missed, but it should have been made a historical landmark for Wytheville, due to its
history. A brief discussion was held regarding the history of the Harrison Memorial Lodge
and the complaints that have been made regarding it being vacant. Assistant Town
Manager Holeton advised that Staff has an update for the Council regarding this property,
and it will be discussed later in the evening in a Closed Meeting.

RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. RE: TRAFFIC CONTROL REQUEST - GEORGE WYTHE HIGH SCHOOL
HOMECOMING PARADE

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the request of George
Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct a Homecoming Parade on
Wednesday, September 17, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the
request of George Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct a Homecoming
Parade on Wednesday, September 17, 2025.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion. There being none, the motion was




Section 7, ItemA.

approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: Voting Yea:
Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins.

RE: REAPPOINTMENT AND APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE REDEVELOPMENT
AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the reappointment of
Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority (term expires
September 8, 2025); and, consider the appointment of a new member to the
Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority to fill the expiring term of Mr. Jack
Quesenberry (term expires September 8, 2025). She inquired if there was a motion to
reappoint Ms. Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority
for a four (4) year term (new term expires September 8, 2029).

Motion made by Councilwoman Atkins, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins.

A motion was made by Councilwoman Atkins and seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson
to appoint Mr. Kerry Eans to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority for
a four (4) year term (term expires September 8, 2029) to fill the expiring term of Jack
Quesenberry (term expires September 8, 2025). Mayor Taylor inquired if there was
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor,
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins.

RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE TREE ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider an appointment to the
Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee to fill the unexpired term of James Cohen (term
expires May 14, 2027) or schedule a Meet and Greet Session for September 8, 2025.
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if anyone knew the applicant, Mr. Derek Williams. A
brief discussion was held regarding whether the Council members knew Mr. Williams,
and if they would like to appoint him to the Tree Advisory Committee or schedule a
Meet and Greet Session. It was the consensus of the Council to schedule a Meet and
Greet Session with Mr. Derek Williams for Monday, September 8, 2025, at 5:30 p.m.,
in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building.

RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE RECREATION COMMISSION YOUTH
MEMBER

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the appointment of a
youth member to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (term expires August 1,
2026). She inquired if there was a motion to appoint Mr. Lucas Mabry as a youth
member to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (term expires August 1, 2026).

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:




Section 7, ItemA.

Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins.

RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider an appointment to the
Wytheville Economic Development Authority (WEDA) to fill the expired term of Mr.
Zach Cooley (term expired December 12, 2024). She inquired if there was a motion
to appoint Mr. James Savesky to the WEDA for a four (4) year term (new term
expires December 12, 2028) to fill the expired term of Mr. Zach Cooley (term expired
December 12, 2024).

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins.

RE: APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT (DHCD) DOCUMENTS FOR MONROE STREET HOUSING
PRODUCTION PROJECT

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review and approval of various
Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) documents for the
Monroe Street Housing Production Project. Assistant Town Manager Holeton stated
that there are six (6) documents that will need Council's approval to move forward
with the Monroe Street Housing Production Project. She noted that the Town is,
currently, in the pre-contract period for the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) for the Monroe Street Housing Production Project. Assistant Town Manager
Holeton advised that the documents needing approval is a resolution to appropriate
funds from the CDBG; a Fair Housing Certification; a Non-Discrimination Policy; a
Grievance Procedure; a Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance
Plan; and, a Section 3 Business and Employment Plan. Mayor Taylor inquired if the
Council had any questions for Assistant Town Manager Holeton. Councilwoman
Atkins inquired if all the measurements for setbacks, etc. for this project were correct.
Assistant Town Manager Holeton stated that the measurements are correct.

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Vice-Mayor
Johnson to approve all six (6) DCHD documents for the Monroe Street Housing
Production Project including the resolution to appropriate funds from the CDBG,; a
Fair Housing Certification; a Non-Discrimination Policy; a Grievance Procedure; a
Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan; and, a Section 3
Business and Employment Plan. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any discussion
on the motion. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if these documents will be recorded as
presented. Mayor Taylor stated that is correct. There being no further discussion, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison.

RE: ELECTRONIC MEETING PARTICIPATION POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-
26

10




Section 7, ItemA.

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to review the Electronic Meeting
Participation Policy for Fiscal Year 2025-26. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that
there have been no changes made to this document, and that it is the same from last
year. She noted that the State Code requires the Policy to be approved annually.
Councilwoman Atkins commented that she wanted to clarify that Council members
who participate electronically are not allowed to have anyone around during a Closed
Meeting. Town Attorney Cassell stated that is correct, and that paragraph six (6) of
the Policy states that the member participating remotely shall ensure that no third
party is able to hear or otherwise observe the Closed Meeting. Mayor Taylor inquired
if there was a motion to adopt the Electronic Meeting Participation Policy for Fiscal
Year 2025-26.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

10. RE: REPORTS

A.

RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Deputy Clerk
Lauren Bedwell presented the upcoming meetings, as follows:

1. The next regular scheduled Town Council Work Session will be held on Tuesday,
August 26, 2025, at 4:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

2. The Joint Industrial Development Authority (JIDA) of Wythe County will meet on
Thursday, August 28, 2025, at 3:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

3. The Town of Wytheville Municipal Offices will be closed and all services curtailed
on Monday, September 1, 2025, due to the Labor Day holiday.

4. The Safety and Events Committee will meet on Tuesday, September 2, 2025, at
10:00 a.m., in Conference Room A.

5. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on
Monday, September 8, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

11. RE: OTHER BUSINESS

A.

RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would like to encourage all Town
employees who have continued their education to come forward, so that they can
receive raises. She noted that she believes in being fair when it comes to raises, and
she wants those who have completed any kind of continuing education to be treated
fairly. Vice-Mayor Johnson advised that no other Council person can speak for her or
make promises on her behalf to anyone. She commented that when she agrees she

11




Section 7, ItemA.

is going to be fair, then she is going to be fair, and that needs to be made known.
Vice-Mayor Johnson stated she encourages all employees, even if it is just training,
to come and ask for their raise. She reiterated that she wants to be fair to all
employees. Vice-Mayor Johnson noted that if other employees are receiving raises,
then raises are going to be given out and they are going to be fair about it. Mayor
Taylor stated that she believes Interim Town Manager Corvin has a list of some of
the employees who have completed training, received certificates, etc. A brief
discussion was held regarding the various kinds of training, certifications and
continuing education for Town employees. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she
wants to be careful and make sure promises are not being made explicitly. Interim
Town Manager Corvin advised that if Department Heads have employees who have
completed training, they are welcome to bring those to Town Management for the
Council to review.

Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired of Interim Town Manager Corvin if she is the only
individual Council member, or Vice-Mayor, who has been contacting Interim Town
Manager Corvin asking for Closed Meetings and for the agendas to be amended.
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she is not. Vice-Mayor Johnson advised
that she wanted to clear the air, so that people know and understand that she is not
the only individual asking for Closed Meetings or agenda amendments. She stated
that she is asked to do that, however, she does not do this for her own personal
agenda.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has some
concerns about the budget and additional raises not being given to certain Town
departments. She noted that she, also, did not want Town departments to go without
equipment that they had requested during the budget. Councilwoman Atkins
commented that she would like to ask Town employees who have received additional
trainings to let Human Resources or Interim Town Manager Corvin know.

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has been accused of having a young man
written up and noted that she had no part of that. She advised that she was not even
aware of it, and that she wanted to clear her name on this.

Councilwoman Atkins stated that, also, she has not been asking to have things
shredded. She noted that she wanted to make that clear.

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she would like for a letter to be entered into the
record regarding discrepancy and salary adjustment. She then read the letter from
July 1, 2025, into the record, which is attached and made part of these minutes.

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she does not mind giving employees raises, and
that the 30-year service recognition was talked about as a whole Council. She noted
that she does have a concern regarding raises not being given fairly. Councilwoman
Atkins inquired about the listing that Interim Town Manager Corvin has, and when it
was made. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that the list she has was submitted
with budget requests. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if there were any questions or
concerns about this until this letter was submitted. Interim Town Manager Corvin
stated that she was not aware of any. Councilwoman Atkins commented that she

12




Section 7, ItemA.

would like for the Council to seriously consider the requests that were made in the list
that Interim Town Manager Corvin has and not just give raises to one employee that
was promised. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that the Council may need to consider
being fair and consider giving a raise to those employees who asked for one. Interim
Town Manager Corvin advised that she will provide the Council with this list of
requests. Councilwoman Atkins noted that she, also, does not like that Town
departments have been denied their request for equipment, either. She commented
that their equipment is part of their safety. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would
like for all Town Police Officers to have take home cars, as well.

Mayor Taylor and Councilwoman Pattison noted that they did not have anything that
they would like to discuss during Council Member Time.

Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any other business to be discussed during Council
Member Time. There being none, she proceeded with the agenda.

12. RE: CLOSED MEETING

A.

RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO SECTION 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) DISCUSSION
REGARDING THE TOWN MANAGER POSITION AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING
SPECIFIC LEGAL MATTERS

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting
pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding the Town Manager
position and pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel
regarding specific legal matters. She inquired if there was a motion to go into a
Closed Meeting.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins. (6:41 p.m.)

RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting.
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding the Town Manager position and
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal
matters, and that only public business matters were heard, discussed or considered
by the Council.

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison.
(9:22 p.m.)

13




13. RE: ADJOURNMENT

Section 7, ItemA.

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting.

(9:23 p.m.)

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Lauren E. Bedwell, Deputy Clerk

14




Section 7, ItemA.

MINUTES

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION

TUESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2025 AT 4:00 PM

CounNciL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES

Persons Present:

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, Interim
Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney
Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Director of Public Utilities and Engineering
Billy Anderson, Computer Operations Manager Ron Jude, Police Sergeant Chastity
Russell, Computer Operations Specialist Lucas Nester

Persons Absent:

Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

2. RE!ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED

A. Approval of Agenda

Mayor Taylor advised that the first agenda item is the Approval of Agenda, and this
required a motion and approval by the Council.

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman
Pattison to amend the agenda to include voting on salary increases for an employee
at the Police Department and two employees of the Town Clerk's Department, and to
add a Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the
acquisition of real property for a public purpose. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor
Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

B. Discussion regarding a sight obstruction on Peppers Ferry Road and possible
realignment of the Oakwood Cemetery fence

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the discussion regarding a sight
obstruction on Peppers Ferry Road and possible realignment of the Oakwood
Cemetery fence. Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Anderson stated that in
the Council's meeting packet, there is information regarding the sight history for
property located at 500 Peppers Ferry Road and the Oakwood Cemetery fence. He
then reviewed the history of this property and the current improvements that are
being made with the Council. Director Anderson noted that Staff received a complaint

15




Section 7, ItemA.

about the sight obstruction, and that Staff made a sight visit to asses the situation. He
commented that a preliminary sight distance measurement was checked utilizing
standards from the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT). Director Anderson
stated that the sight distance left, when viewing in the direction of the cemetery fence
from a point in the entrance, was about 10 feet off of the travel lane. He noted that
this gives motorists only about 100 to 125 feet sight distance, and the VDOT
standard for a four-lane, undivided major highway with a posted 35 mile per hour
speed limit is 415 feet sight distance left and 440 feet sight distance right. Director
Anderson advised that a request was made by the developer to temporarily remove
portions of the fence to allow for sight distance measurements to be made and
determine if there is a notable improvement. He commented that this request was
approved, and that Town staff conducted a second sight distance measurement with
portions of the fence removed. He then discussed the results of the second sight
distance measurement with the Council. Director Anderson stated that to improve
safety when exiting the entrance, the corner post of the fence could be relocated
eight (8) feet north of its existing location. Discussion continued regarding the
potential relocation of the fence at the Oakwood Cemetery, and the limited ability to
improve the entrance due to potential burials. Mayor Taylor inquired if Director
Anderson was going to bring back a quote to the Council regarding the potential cost
of the project. Director Anderson stated that the company, Geomodel, will email him
a formal quote, and that they would sweep the cemetery area, pin potential areas
and produce paperwork with potential gravesites. He noted that this would need to be
done before the potential fence relocation. Councilwoman Pattison inquired when the
Virginia Department of Corrections (VADOC) anticipate the completion and opening
of this facility. Director Anderson advised that the VADOC is, probably, on schedule
to be completed this year. He noted that he thinks they will begin paving before cold
weather begins. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she does not see a reason to
delay giving Engineering staff an answer to pursue this project, due to safety
concerns. Discussion was held regarding continuing with the fence relocation project,
and the next steps, if there is discovery of burials next to the proposed relocation
sight in the Oakwood Cemetery.

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Vice-Mayor
Johnson to allow the Engineering Department to proceed with relocating the fence at
the Oakwood Cemetery, if there are no burials and nothing to be disturbed in the
path of the projected fence relocation. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any
discussion on the motion. Director Anderson stated that he will check with Public
Works Supervisor Jason Luttrell to see if there is any money available in the
Cemetery Fund to help assist with this. He advised that once Geomodel has
completed the work, he will bring an update back to the Council with their findings. A
brief discussion was held regarding the ability to see around the block retaining wall
near the cemetery from the DOC facility's entrance, Staff's suggestion to move this
section of fence back at the cemetery, the potential fence relocation cost and why
this project has become the Town's responsibility if the DOC's engineer could have
developed a new entrance with increased visibility. Councilwoman Pattison and Vice-
Mayor Johnson withdrew the motion, due to the discussion regarding the DOC not
having their engineer reconfigure a new entrance with increased motorist visibility.

16




Section 7, ItemA.

Town Attorney Cassell stated that he would discuss this matter with Director
Anderson and bring an update back to the Council at the next meeting.

Review of Ordinance No. 1456, an ordinance amending and reenacting Chapter
7, License and Business Regulations, Article I. In General, Section 7.1 Agents,
Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door Sales, Political Parties Exempted, of
the Code of the Town of Wytheuville, Virginia, to add an additional exemption for
public service providers

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to review Ordinance No. 1456, an
ordinance amending and reenacting Chapter 7, License and Business Regulations,
Article I. In General, Section 7.1 Agents, Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door
Sales, Political Parties Exempted, of the Code of the Town of Wytheuville, Virginia, to
add an additional exemption for public service providers. Interim Town Manager
Corvin stated that this ordinance is for the Council's review. She noted that there has
been a change in the State Law that states that the Town cannot keep public service
providers from canvassing neighborhoods. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised
that she has highlighted the changes regarding public service providers in yellow.
She commented that this ordinance is just for review, and that it will be considered for
adoption at the September 8, Town Council meeting. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if
the Council could go ahead and vote to adopt Ordinance No. 1456, at this meeting.
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Council is welcome to adopt Ordinance
No. 1456, at this meeting, if they would like.

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman
Pattison to adopt Ordinance No. 1456, an ordinance amending and reenacting
Chapter 7, License and Business Regulations, Article I. In General, Section 7.1
Agents, Canvassers or Solicitors for Door to Door Sales, Political Parties Exempted,
of the Code of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, to add an additional exemption for
public service providers, on first and final reading. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vic-Mayor Johnson, Mayor
Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison.

Review of Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of the Town Council
Rules of Procedure for 2025. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she brought
this document before the Council for their review, so they can see if there are any
changes that they would for Staff to make. She noted that she would like to ask the
Council if they would consider developing a document that would be agreeable with
all of the Council for all of the Council members to follow. Interim Town Manager
Corvin advised that, if the Council members wanted to take the Rules of Procedure
and read them, she would be more than happy to make any changes or additions
they would like. Mayor Taylor stated that she would like for the Council to read and
review this document and have Staff bring it back to a future meeting. Interim Town
Manager Corvin advised that she will bring this document back to the September 9,
Work Session meeting, and that she will incorporate any changes that have been
requested. Mayor Taylor inquired if Interim Town Manager Corvin could send an

17




Section 7, ItemA.

email to the Council members who are absent from this meeting regarding this topic.
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that she would email those Council members.

Discussion regarding audio system speakers in the downtown area

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a discussion regarding audio
system speakers in the downtown area. Computer Operations Manager Jude stated
that he was asked to look at the speakers downtown. He noted that there are, at
least, 30 to 35 speakers in the downtown area that have been damaged or are not
working. Computer Operations Manager Jude advised that there is an area near the
Saint Mary Mother of God Church where the speakers are not playing audio around
the whole block. He stated that Staff contacted the company, StageSound, regarding
the speakers that are not functioning properly in downtown. Computer Operations
Manager Jude noted that the speakers that are, currently, in the downtown area have
a new design and that the quoted price for those speakers and the equipment to go
with them is around $28,111.02. He advised that there is a possibility that all of the
speaker equipment may not be needed, based on the conditions of the speaker.
Computer Operations Manager Jude commented that there is a new kind of
landscape speaker, and the price quote for those are around $425.22, each. He then
presented information regarding the new landscape speaker, gave a comparison of
the two landscape speakers and discussed which speakers would be best for specific
locations in downtown. Mayor Taylor inquired about a previous discussion regarding
the vandalism of some speakers, and asked how many of the speakers were
vandalized. Computer Operations Manager Jude stated that the majority of the
problem is not vandalism. He noted that the main cause of damaged or broken
speakers is weed eaters, lawn mowers, storms, etc. Computer Operations Manager
Jude commented that a lot more speakers have went missing within the last six (6)
months. He stated that it looks like they have been torn out of the ground, and that
they are mostly going missing and being damaged around Saint Mary's Church.
Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that repair and/or replacement of the speakers
in the downtown area is another unbudgeted item. She advised that this topic was
discussed because Staff received a request to pick up the broken speaker heads.
Interim Town Manager Corvin commented that it is not as simple as just picking up
the broken heads, because they are all connected by wires, cables, etc. Mayor Taylor
stated that she needs more information regarding the process of repairing and/or
replacing the speakers that are downtown. Interim Town Manager Corvin noted that
she believes that they can just repair or replace the broken speakers in certain areas.
Computer Operations Manager Jude commented that the Council could allocate a
certain amount of money and replace one specific area at a time. Discussion was
held regarding which speaker Computer Operations Manager Jude thinks will work
best for the downtown area, and the idea of potentially purchasing a new mushroom
style speaker to see how the Council likes it. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if the
current speakers were part of the original Main Street Program. Interim Town
Manager Corvin stated that they were originally part of the Main Street Program.
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if the funds for the speakers was given in the form of a
grant, or if the funds were given to Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated. Interim Town
Manager Corvin stated that she is not sure, and that will need to check on that.

18




Section 7, ItemA.

Discussion regarding a proposed joint meeting of the Wytheville Town Council
and the Wytheville Planning Commission regarding the Unified Development
Ordinance (UDO)

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the discussion regarding a
proposed joint meeting of the Wytheville Town Council and the Wytheville Planning
Commission regarding the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Assistant Town
Manager Holeton stated that a request was made by the Planning Commission to
meet with the Town Council to discuss the UDO, and that the Town Council agreed
to schedule a joint meeting. She noted that Staff has found it difficult to schedule a
time that works best for both bodies. Assistant Town Manager Holeton commented
that she thought she could, hopefully, work with the Meeting Center to find a time that
one of their meeting rooms will be available, and send out a Doodle Poll to the
Council and Planning Commission members to choose between five (5) and eight (8)
dates that will potentially work for everyone. It was the consensus of the Council to
allow Assistant Town Manager Holeton to work with the Meeting Center, and to send
a Doodle Poll to the Council and Planning Commission members in hopes of
scheduling a joint meeting to discuss the UDO.

Voting on salary increases for an employee at the Police Department and two
(2) employees of the Town Clerk's Department

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to vote on salary increases for an
employee at the Police Department and two (2) employees of the Town Clerk's
Department. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Council is familiar with
both of these salary increase requests for the Police Department and the Town
Clerk's Department. She noted that the Town's Ordinance stated that the Council
needs to vote to approve these salary increases. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a
motion to approve salary increases for an employee at the Police Department and
two (2) employees of the Town Clerk's Department.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the
acquisition of real property for a public purpose

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary for the Council to go into a
Closed Meeting pursuant to section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the
acquisition of real property for a public purpose. She inquired if there was a motion to
go into a Closed Meeting.

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison. (5:07 p.m.)

19




Section 7, ItemA.

l. Certification of Closed Meeting

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting.
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the acquisition of real property for a
public purpose and that only public business matters that were identified in the
motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the
Council.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison (5:34 p.m.)

J. Council decision regarding an offer from the Wythe Arts Council to purchase
the Haller House

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman
Pattison to decline the offer to purchase the Haller House, located at 195 West
Washington Street, from the Wythe Arts Council. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was
any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor
Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (5:35
p.m.)

Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk

20




Section 9, ItemA.

21




Section 9, ItemA.

WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority
SUMMARY:

The term of Ellen McDaniel on the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority expires
September 8, 2025. Mrs. McDaniel is eligible for reappointment and has expressed an interest
in serving another term, if reappointed. This reappointment would be for a four year term that

expires September 8, 2029.

Recommended Action

Action to reappoint Mrs. McDaniel to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority

requires a motion and vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - WRHA Reappointment.docx

22




Section 9, ItemB.

23




Section 9, ItemB.

WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee Appointment
SUMMARY:

The term of James Cohen to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee expires on May 14, 2027,
and Mr. Cohen has resigned from the Committee. Please find enclosed one application for
consideration of appointment to this Committee. The appointment expires May 14, 2027, at

which time the appointee will be eligible for reappointment.

Recommended Action

Action to appoint a member to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee will require a motion and

vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Tree Advisory Committee.docx

24




Section 9, ItemB.

@ Town of Wytheville, VA August
COMM-25-5 Primary Location Applicant
Application to Serve on Town No location 2 Derek Williams

Committee or Board

Status: Active
Submitted On: 8/6/2025

Owner

No owner information

APPLICANT INFORMATION
Full Legal Name* Applicant Mailing Street/PO Address * @
Zip Code Mailing Address* @ Applicant Contact Phone Number* @
Applicant Email Address* @ Place of Employment or Other* @

The Town Council makes appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions. When there is an
opening in a board or committee, interested citizens should complete this application. The council will
review the applications before an appointment is made. The Town Clerk maintains information about
terms and current opentings on boards and committees. Information can be found on the Town
website https://www.wytheville.org/boards-committees . For detailed questions about meeting
intervals, dates, and times contact the Town Clerk at 276-223-3349.

<Bold>The list below outlines the various boards, commissions and committees that individuals can
serve on.

Board of Zoning Appeals- Five (5) year term. Members are required to submit a Real Estate
Disclosure Form to satisfy statewide reporting requirements.

Building Code Appeals Board- Five (5) year term.

25




Section 9, ItemB.

Joint Industrial Development Authority- Four (4) year term. Members are required to to submit a
Financial and Real Estate Disclosure Form to satisfy statewide reporting requirements. Members
must attend a Conflict of Interest Training.

Planning Commission - Four (4) year term. Members are required to submit Real Estate Disclosure
Form to satisfy statewide reporting requirements. Must attend Certified Planning Commissioner’s
Training.

Recreation Commission - Three (3) year term.

Smyth-Wythe Airport Commission - Four(4) year term.

Tree Advisory Committee - Four (4) year term.

Wall of Honor Committee - Four (4) year term,

Willow Brook Jackson/Umberger Homestead Museum Advisory Board - Five (5} year term.

Housing Rehabilitation Zone Selection Committee - Five (5) year term. Must be either a Planning
Commission or Town EDA member. Members shall not be in construction or real estate industry.

Wytheville Economic Development Authority - Four (4) year term. Members must submit a Financial
and Real Estate Disclosure Form to satisfy state reporting guidelines. Members must attend a Conflict
of Interest Act Training.

Wytheville Redevelopment & Housing Authority - Four (4) year term.

Which Board/Committee are you interested in serving on?* @

Tree Advisory Committee

If you would like to serve on more than one board or commitiee, please enter them both in this field, @

26




Section 9, ItemB.

Are you currently a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals @
or are you a member on the Building Board of Appeals?*

NO

If you are already serving on the Board of Zoning Appeals or the Building Board of Appeals please
contact the Town Clerk. The Code of Virginia prohibits members of the BZA or the LBBCA from
serving on other boards, aside from one member of the BZA who may also be on the Planning
Commission.

Please provide us with additional information regarding your professional background, your educational background, any L 2]
community service aclivities and information related to your experience as it relates to the appointment.*

| am a retired Landscape Architect with over 40 years experince. | have degrees in both
Landscape Architecture and Parks and Recreation Administration. My area of practice was
primarily park planning, but also worked on university and health care campus planning.
Our firm did work throughout North Carolina and did work with hundreds of municpal and
county agencies designing parks, atheltic facilities, community college campuses, etc.

Share any previous employment or service on other Town Boards or Committees that you may have been involved with, Include @
service dates, job positions and other details of your service.*

We are new to Wytheville. | have no prior experince on any Town Boards

Provide information about yourself, Share knowlege base or skillsets that you possess, How will you add value to the committee @
or board?*

Most of my adult life was spent in Charlotte, NC, where | started a Landscape Architectural
practice in 1985. In 2016, | sold the practice and we moved to the coast of North Carolina.
Several years ago, we bought a home in Wytheville. We spend approximately half our time
here. | will be able to attend quarterly Committee meetings.

The Town requires that all individuals who seek to serve on a Town Committee or a Town Board shall
undergo a background check at the time of application.

The applicant will be required to upload the Background Report Release Form and the Personnel
Record Request Form . The forms can be downloaded from the link under attachments on the

attachment page. <font color="red"Copy and paste this link in a new web browser: <a
27




Section 9, ItemB.

Once you have downloaded and completed the form on your personal computer, save the document
on your personal computer. When you get to the attachments field in this application, you can upload
the completed background release form document into this application portal. If you have issues with
this step call 276-223-3353 and a Town Clerk will assist you.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT & AUTHORIZATION

1.1 hereby certify that the information provided is complete and
accurate.”

Name of Applicant:* @
Derek C Williams

Town Council Approval

& Date of Issuance

Attachments

2. | understand that if appointed, | am expected to attend the
meeting(s) as scheduled and | understand that repeated
absences may result in my being removed from a Board or
Commission.*

Click here to add your legally binding digital signature*

@ Derek C. Williams
Aug 6, 2025

& |f appointed. Town Clerk put term expiration date here.

Background Report Release Form and Personnel Record Release Form REQUIRED
Town-Committee-Board-Packet-and-Background-Release-Forms.pdf
Uploaded by Derek Williams on Aug 6, 2025 at 2:20 PM

WythevilleBackgroundreportsigned.pdf

WhythevilleBackgroundreportsigned.pdf

Uploaded by Derek Williams on Aug 6, 2025 at 5:19 PM

28




Section 9, IltemC.

29




WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

Meeting Date:

Section 9, IltemC.

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

September 8, 2025

Subject:

Art at the Crossroads Event

SUMMARY:

Please find attached a request from Shane Terry to use the sidewalks on Main Street, from

Tazewell Street to 4™ Street, to conduct an Art at the Crossroads event on Saturday, October

18, 2025. The Safety and Events Committee has reviewed this request and would recommend

that the Town Council approve this event. Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton will review

this request with the Town Council and answer any questions.

Recommended Action

Action to approve the request to conduct the Art at the Crossroads event will require a motion

and vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Lithia Road Connector Project Resolution.docx

30




9/2/25, 10:56 AM EVEN-25-15

Section 9, IltemC.

Town of Wytheville, VA Septembe

EVEN-25-15 Applicant
Special Event, Street Closure, or Traffic Control
Application
Status: Active
Submitted On: 9/2/2025

OVERVIEW & PROCESS

Organized events or activities that involve the use of public streets, right of way, sidewalks or other areas
under the jurisdiction of the Town of Wytheville will require a permit. Examples include, but is not limited
to; parades, marches, street closure events, walk/run events.

When the application is received by Town Staff through the online portal, you will receive an automatic
response from the permit software. The application will then proceed to the next Safety and Events
Committee Meeting for review. The Committee only meets one time a month, so early submittals is
encouraged. The Safety and Event Committee may require the applicant to attend the meeting to answer
questions regarding the event, in particular if the event is held for the first time or if the event creates
safety concerns. The Committee will make a recommendation to Town Council and the application will be
placed on a future agenda of the Town Council Meeting.

The event organizer will be notified of the approval status of the application. The applicant is responsible
for the logistics of the event and the Town assumes no other responsibility unless agreed to by an
authorized representative of the Town. The event organizer shall contact the Wytheville Police Department
at least one week prior to the event date to ensure good communication leading up to the event.

The "Policy Guidance on Event Safety, Street Closure and Traffic Control", shall be used by the event
organizer to facilitate safe and efficient events. All event organizers must read, understand and abide by
this policy. The policy is available at the Town Website https://www.wytheville.org/docs/general/091223-
Policy-Guidance-on-Event-Safety-Traffic-Control.pdf or can be sent upon request. Questions regarding
this application can be directed to Town Staff at 276-223-3353

APPLICATION CONFIRMATION

Please check the box to indicate that you understand the (7]
process for review and approval of this application and to

agree to the Policy Guidance on Event Safety, Street Closure

and Traffic Control.*

31

https://wythevilleva.workflow.opengov.com/#/explore/records/3935/details 1/6



9/2/25, 10:56 AM

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Event Name* @

Art at the Crossroads

Applicant Name* @

Shane Terry

Applicant Email Address* @

Co Applicant Cell Phone*

Have you sponsored this same event (same scope, location, @
street closure) previously?*

YES

EVENT INFORMATION

Day of the Week * @

Saturday

Event Type* @

Other Event

Street Closure Time Bracket, when you need the streets closed @
or controlled for setup and tear down. Use N/A if this is not
applicable to you.*

N/A

Time Event Closes to Public* @

4PM

https://wythevilleva.workflow.opengov.com/#/explore/records/3935/details

EVEN-25-15

Section 9, IltemC.

Organization Name or N/A* @

Applicant Cell Phone* @

Co Applicant* @

MatthewFrusher

Co Applicant Email Address*

Event Date or Day of Event*

10/18/2025

Name of the Route ( if known) * @

Main Street

Time Event Opens to Public* @

10AM

32

2/6



9/2/25, 10:56 AM EVEN-25-15

Section 9, IltemC.

If the event is multiple days with a variation of times. Please describe all dates and times here. Otherwise enter N/A.*

N/A

Provide purpose and scope of your event. List the types of activies proposed.* @

Art at the Crossroads is an artisan market lining Wytheville's Main Street from Tazewell to 4th
streets. No street closure is requested. Art at the Crossroads is a collaborative event sponsored
by the Wythe Arts Council and Forge Appalachia.

Expected Attendance or number of people that you expect will @  If you will use volunteers please indicate the number of safety
attend.* vests that you will need to borrow from the Police Department.*

400 0

STREET CLOSURE OR TRAFFIC CONTROL

The applicant will be required to upload a map of the event area or area where the street closure or
traffic control is to occur. The applicant shall upload the map in the attachment section of this portal.
Please show street names and path of travel for parades, 5K and marches.

Describe the street closure or limits of the event. Describe from which intersection to which intersection or what portions of (7]
streets are impacted. For 5K and parades describe starting point, paths of travel and end location.*

Event will use sidewalks on Main Street from Tazewell Street to 4th Street. NO road closure
is requested.

Applicant: It is your responsibility to contact the Police
Department at 276-223-3300 one week prior to the date of the
street closure to confirm the event closure time and details. Do
you understand this requirement?*

YES

33

https://wythevilleva.workflow.opengov.com/#/explore/records/3935/details 3/6



9/2/25, 10:56 AM EVEN-25-15

Section 9, IltemC.

OTHER REQUIRED INFORMATION

Will there be food for sale or food trucks be at the event?* @ Alcohol Sales. Will alcohol be sold or distributed as part of the @
event?*

YES
NO

If alcohol is proposed the town requires the event organizerto @  Will the event use a Town park or facility in conjunction with @
pay an off duty police officer to be present. Large festivals or the street closure event?*

events may require two or more officers at the discretion of the

Police Chief. If more officers are required than you requested,

the town will notify you of this requirement. In some instances

an event may also request security even if alcohol is not

proposed. Will this event require an off duty police officer due

to alcohol or other reasons?*

YES

NO

Use of a Town park requires a use permit from the Parks and Will anything be sold by an outdoor, temporary or mobile (7]
Recreation Department 223-3378. Indicate whether you have vendor at the event? *

received this permit and attach it to this application in the

attachments section.*

YES

NOT APPLICABLE

A vendor license from the Town Treasurer is required to sell items, food or beverages in the Town of
Wytheville. Event organizer is required to notify all vendors of this requirement and to ensure that local
laws are followed. Treasurer Contact Number is 276-223-3333

Will tents, stages, or other physical elements be used/placed in @
the street, sidewalks or right of way? *

YES

If you are placing physical items in the street or on the sidewalk you must submit a site plan showing that
these items are placed properly in accordance with the Town street closure policy. Upload the site plan in
the attachments.

Will connection to electricity or generators be needed?* @ Will there be open fire, fireworks or any source of open flames @

in conjunction with this request?*
NO ) q

NO

34

https://wythevilleva.workflow.opengov.com/#/explore/records/3935/details 4/6



9/2/25, 10:56 AM EVEN-25-15

Section 9, IltemC.

Describe your plan for trash refuse collection and providing port a johns or sanitary facilities.* @

This event typically doesn't produce excess trash. Public trash cans along Main Street ar
sufficent.

If your event is on main street, do you want the music on main @
street turned off for the event?*

YES

Downtown Wytheville controls the music for Main Street. If you would like the radio to be off for your event
please contact DTW at least three days prior to the event. To reach DTW please call 276-223-3343

DIGITAL SIGNATURE: | am signing this application as the event coordinator and |
understand that | am responsible for ensuring that any special directions and/or
conditions provided by the Town and attached to this permit for street closure and/or
special event must be followed. | understand that it is my responsiblity to ensure
that local, state and federal laws as it relates to the event that | am sponsoring are
followed and adhered to. | have read and | understand the Town Policy Guidance on
Street Closures and Traffic Control. | agree to serving as the Event Organizer to
ensure that the event can be safely held. | understand that in the event of an
incident on the interstate that requires a detour through Town, that my event may be
cancelled or shut down at the discretion of the Town and the Town will not be held
liable for unforeseen circumstances beyond the Town's control.

Select the box to provide a digital signature for this application*

@ T. Shane Terry

Sep 2, 2025
Record Activity
Shane Terry started a draft Record 09/02/2025 at 8:54 am
Shane Terry added file Wythe Arts Council POLICY.pdf 09/02/2025 at 9:04 am
Shane Terry added file Art at the Crossroads map.png 09/02/2025 at 9:10 am
Shane Terry submitted Record EVEN-25-15 09/02/2025 at 9:11 am

35

https://wythevilleva.workflow.opengov.com/#/explore/records/3935/details 5/6



9/2/25, 10:56 AM Art_at_the_Crossroads_map_Tue_Sep_2 2025 09-10-26.png (1025%667)

Section 9, ltemC.

e

Rock House .@. ¥, ‘The Bolling Wilson Hotel @
) Historic house museum o 4 8 4 4.6 % (638) \@) Moon Dog Brick Oven
Withers Park with quided tours 2 gstarhotel @D - i
Park with a playground g Wytheville, VA

& a war memcrial Pizza

o
d ® " &
= ’ c__'q*\
@ Luttrell Staffing &
Group - Wytheville S
O O mainturf

r
-

Jo Jo's Attic | @™y,
Amigue store @/ The Millwald @ blackwood

; Cy
Wytheville '9' &
@ United States Farmers Market " ot
Postal Service TN ( New Century
© virginia ‘9/ Title & Settlement
(o
& Wytheville
% Presbyterian Church @
Barne i '\Q/
2l
36

https://vpc3uploadedfiles.blob.core.windows.net/vpc3-files/wythevilleva/Art_at the Crossroads map Tue Sep 2 2025 09-10-26.png?sp=r&sv=2017... 17



Section 9, ItemD.

37




Section 9, ItemD.

WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Resolution — Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project
SUMMARY:

Please find attached a resolution required for the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project. As
the Council will recall, this is a project in which Landscaping Architect/Grants Administrator John
Woods addressed the Council regarding applying for a Virginia Department of Transportation
grant that would provide a sidewalk along Lithia Road from East Main Street to Community
Boulevard. The resolution notes that the Town will provide its share of the total cost for

preliminary engineering, right of way and construction.

Recommended Action

Action to adopt the resolution will require a motion and roll call vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Lithia Road Connector Project Resolution.docx

38




Section 9, ItemD.

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Commonwealth Transportation Board construction
allocation procedures, it is necessary that a request by resolution be received from the sponsoring
local jurisdiction or agency requesting the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to
establish a Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program project in the Town of Wytheville; and,

WHEREAS, a safe pathway from the sidewalk terminus at the intersection of East Main
Street and Lithia Road to the sidewalk terminus at the intersection of Lithia Road and Community
Boulevard is needed for citizens and hotel guests to walk in this area and to access business
areas along East Main Street; and,

WHEREAS, citizens regularly use the Lithia Road and Community Boulevard corridor as
a jogging path in their efforts to maintain a healthy lifestyle.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Wytheville,
Virginia, requests the Commonwealth Transportation Board to establish a project for the design
and construction of the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project in the Town of Wytheuville.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Wytheville hereby agrees to provide its
share of the total cost for preliminary engineering, right-of-way, and construction of this project in
accordance with the project financial documents subject to appropriation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Wytheville will be responsible for
maintenance and operating costs of the facility as constructed unless other arrangements have
been made with VDOT.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Wytheville subsequently elects to cancel

the project; the Town of Wytheville hereby agrees to reimburse VDOT for the total amount of

39




Section 9, ItemD.

costs expended by VDOT through the date VDOT is notified of such cancellation. The Town of
Whytheville also agrees to repay any funds previously reimbursed that are later deemed ineligible
by the Federal Highway Administration or VDOT.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Wytheville hereby
grants authority for the Town Manager to apply for funds and execute project administration
agreements, as well as other documents necessary for approved projects.

Adopted this 8" day of September 2025.

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk

40




Section 10, ItemA.

41




Section 10, ItemA.

WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Upcoming Meetings
SUMMARY:

Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones will present the upcoming meetings to the Town Council.

Recommended Action

No action required at this time.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Upcoming Meetings.docx

42




Section 10, ItemA.

UPCOMING MEETINGS

The Wytheville Planning Commission will meet on Thursday, September 11,
2025, at 6:00 p.m., here in the Council Chambers.

The Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated (DTW) Board of Directors will meet on
Monday, September 15, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., at the DTW Office.

The Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will meet on Wednesday,
September 17, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., at the Housing Authority Office.

The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, September 18,
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Water Plant in Austinville.

The District Il Board of Directors will meet on Thursday, September 18, 2025, at
6:00 p.m., at the Marion Office.

The Homestead Museum Advisory Board will meet on Friday, September 19,
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Jackson property.

The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on
Monday, September 22, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., here in the Council Chambers.

G:\COUNCIL\UPCOMING MEETINGS\2025\090825.docx

43




Section 11, ItemA.

11-A

44




Section 11, ItemA.

WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025
SUMMARY:

Please find enclosed a copy of the Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025 for further review.
Town Management suggestions are highlighted in yellow. Town staff will take any suggested
changes from the Town Council members and incorporate them into the document and bring it

back for further review and discussion by the Town Council.

Recommended Action

No action required at this time.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025.docx

45




Section 11, ItemA.

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR 2025

Be it resolved that the Wytheville Town Council does hereby accept and adopt these
Rules of Procedure in order to facilitate its powers and duties in accordance with
provisions of Title 15.2, Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended.

INTRODUCTION

These Rules of Procedure were designed and adopted for the benefit and convenience
of the Wytheville Town Council. Their purpose is to help Town Council conduct its
affairs in a timely and efficient manner. They incorporate the general principles of
parliamentary procedure found in Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised and
applicable Virginia laws. The Rules of Procedure do not create substantive rights for
third parties or participants in proceedings before Town Council. Further, the Town
Council reserves the right to suspend or amend the Rules of Procedure whenever a
majority of the Council decides to do so. When the Town Council’'s Rules of Procedure
do not address a procedural issue, the Council may consider the most recent edition of
Robert’s Rules of Order for guidance. The failure of the Town Council to strictly comply
with the Rules of Procedure shall not invalidate any action of the Town Council.

ARTICLE |I. PURPOSE AND BASIC PRINCIPLES

1.1  Purpose of Rules of Procedure

A. To enable the Wytheville Town Council to transact business fully, expeditiously
and efficiently while affording every opportunity to citizens to witness the
operations of government;

B. To protect the rights of each individual Council member;

C. To preserve a spirit of cooperation among Council members and govern the
decorum of Council members;

D. To determine the will of Town Council on any matter; and,

E. To preserve the cohesiveness of the Council to act as a group so that no

one Town Council member can take any Council action as one person, and
to ensure that the majority vote of the Town Council prevails in all
decisions while preserving the rights of the minority.

1.2 Basic Principles Underlying Rules of Procedure

A. The business of the Town Council should proceed in the most efficient manner
possible;

B. Town Council’s Rules of Procedure must be followed consistently by all Town
Council members;

C. Town Council’s actions should be the result of a decision on the merits and not a
manipulation of the procedural rules;

D. Only one subject may claim the attention of Town Council at one time;

E. Each item presented for consideration is entitled to full and free discussion;

1

46




Tom

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Section 11, ItemA.

Every member has equal rights to participate and vote on all issues;

Every member must have equal opportunity to participate in decision making;
The will of the majority must be carried out, and the rights of the minority must be
preserved; and,

The Council must act as a body.

ARTICLE Il - TITLE

The official title of this Council shall be the Wytheville Town Council.

ARTICLE Ill - MEMBERS

The Town Council shall consist of five members, who all serve At-Large. The
term of office for all Council shall be for four years on staggered terms.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

Mayor. The Mayor of the Council shall be elected every four years. The Mayor
shall preside over all meetings, represent the Council at official functions and
ceremonial events and make such appointments as are not required by law to be
made by the Council as a body. The role of the Mayor includes, but is not limited
to: (1) Acts as the official head of the Town for ceremonial purposes; (2) Chairs
all Town Council meetings; (3) Maintains order and decorum and ensures the fair
and equitable treatment of all speakers; (4) Keeps discussion and questions
focused on the specific agenda item being discussed; (5) Serves as a
spokesperson on all official Town Council positions; (6) Selects substitute Town
representation when he/she cannot attend a function; (7) Strives to lead the
Council into an effective, cohesive, working team; (8) Signs documents, not
requiring the Town Manager’s signature, on behalf of the Town.

Vice-Mayor. The Vice-Mayor of the Council shall be elected from its members at
its organizational meeting. The Vice-Mayor shall preside in the absence of the
Mayor and perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Council. The
role of the Vice-Mayor includes, but is not limited to: (1) Performs the duties of
the Mayor in his/her absence or is disabled in any way; (2) Chairs Council
meetings in the Mayor's absence; (3) Represents the Town at ceremonial
functions at the Mayor’s request; (4) Makes routine motions on Town Council
meeting agenda items.

Term of Office. The elected Mayor shall serve for four years, and the Vice-
Mayor shall be selected for two-year terms.

Appointed Officers. The Town Council appoints a Town Manager, Town
Attorney, Town Clerk and Town Treasurer. These officers shall hold their office at
the pleasure of the Town Council and shall qualify for their respective office as
required by law.

47




5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Section 11, ItemA.

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS

Organizational Meeting. The first meeting held after the newly elected members
of the Council have qualified, and the first meeting in January held of each
succeeding year shall be known as the organizational meeting. At such
organizational meeting, the Council shall establish the days, times and places for
the regular meetings of the Council for the ensuing twelve months. (Section 15.2-
1416, Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended)

Regular Meetings. The Council shall meet in regular session on the second and
fourth Monday of each month at a time as prescribed by the Town Council. The
Council shall meet as shown on the approved Meeting Calendar, and any
subsequent revisions or by recessing any meeting and setting the date and time
for continuation of that meeting will be by roll call vote. The Council may
subsequently establish different days, times or places for such regular meetings
by passing a resolution to that effect. However, when the day established as a
regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next
regular business day, without action of any kind by the Council. If a Council
meeting is cancelled due to inclement weather or other conditions are such that it
is hazardous for Council members to attend the regular meeting, the meeting
shall be continued until the following Monday at the same time and in the same
place. (Section 15.2-1416, Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.)

Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Clerk of the Council
at the request of the Mayor or any three (3) Council members. Reasonable notice
of each special meeting shall be given to each member of the Council. No
business shall be transacted at a special meeting except that for which the
special meeting is called, except by a majority vote of all of the members of the
Council. (Section 15.2-1418 et al Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.)

Notice to Public. The Town Clerk shall make out the notice of such meeting of
the Council for each member, notify the general news media of the time and
place of all meetings when three (3) or more members of the Council are
scheduled to attend to conduct Town business.

Public Hearings. Public hearings shall be held after proper public notice has
been given. (Section 15.2-1427(F), Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.)

Recessed Meetings. Any regular or special meeting may be recessed by a
majority of the members of the Council present to a date and time designated
prior to the next regular meeting.

Place of Meetings. The location for the Town Council meetings shall be in the
Council Chambers of the Town Municipal Building, 150 East Monroe Street,
Wytheville, Virginia, unless a different meeting place has been established and
notice published as required by the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.

48




Section 11, ItemA.

5.8 Open Meetings. All meetings shall be open to the public, provided that the
Council may, for purposes provided for in the Virginia Freedom of Information
Act, upon motion made, seconded and duly adopted, meet in a closed meeting.
No resolution, ordinance, rule, contract, regulation or motion shall be adopted in
a closed meeting. All motions shall become effective only after it is properly voted
upon in an open meeting and a vote taken of the membership on such resolution,
ordinance, rule, contract, regulation or motion.

ARTICLE VI — AGENDAS FOR TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS

At each regular Town Council meeting, the first agenda item will be “Approval of
Agenda.” The Mayor or other presiding officer will entertain a motion for Council to
approve the proposed regular session agenda, with or without modification as identified
in the motion. The Clerk of Council will poll each Council member on such vote and, if
necessary, successive votes will be taken until there is Council approval of both
agendas. With a vote for approval of modification, Council may amend its regular
session agenda at the beginning of the regular session, again with the Clerk of Council
conducting an individual poll on the vote of each member of Council. There will be an
agenda for each and every Council meeting, including occasional Work Sessions, and
no matters which are not on the approved agendas will be discussed unless deemed an
emergency. Any Town Council member who desires to add an item to the agenda
that requires action shall do so during the “Approval of Agenda.” No item
requiring action shall be considered by the Town Council if it is not added to the
agenda during the appropriate time, however, the item will be considered for an
addition to the next Town Council meeting agenda. Notwithstanding any prior action
of Council to the contrary, Council members may contact the Town Manager with any
items desired to be on the agenda, if necessary. No agenda item suggested by a Town
Council member shall be placed on the agenda without it being a consensus of the
Council to discuss the matter. The proposed agenda items cut-off time will be ten (10)
days preceding the Monday Town Council meeting. The Town Manager or Mayor shall
approve or disapprove the proposed agenda item according to the items already
scheduled for the agenda or if |t is determlned that the item requires further research by
Town staff. Alagends 0po Cod members-th
shaﬂ—be—plaeed—en—the—fe#ewmg—meetmg—s—agenda— The proposed agendas and
back-up materials will be transmitted to Council members by Thursday afternoon prior to
the meeting, absent special circumstances.

Agenda materials shall be compiled and delivered to the Clerk of Council by 12 noon on
the Monday preceding the scheduled Council meeting for duplication and distribution, by
whatever means as determined by Council (i.e., paper copies, electronically, etc.).

ARTICLE VIl - QUORUM AND ACTIONS

7.1  Quorum. A majority of all the members of the Council shall constitute a quorum.
The Mayor shall be included and counted in determining the presence or
absence of a quorum.

49




7.2

7.3

Section 11, ItemA.

Required Absence. No action shall be taken by the Council unless there shall
be present at least a quorum, provided, however, that the temporary absence
from the meeting room of members sufficient to constitute a quorum shall not be
deemed to prevent the hearing of presentations or the discussion of matters
submitted to the Council. The Clerk shall suggest the absence of a quorum prior
to the taking of any action by the Council. Failure of the Clerk, or any member of
the Council, to suggest the absence of a quorum shall not be deemed to alter the
effect of this rule requiring a quorum as a prerequisite to any action.

Remote Participation in Council Meetings. Council members may participate
in meetings of the Wytheville Town Council or a Wytheville Town Council
Committee/Board by electronic means as permitted by Virginia Code §2.2-3708.3
and in compliance with the Town of Wytheville Electronic Meeting Participation
Policy. This applies to the entire membership and without regard to the identity of
the member requesting remote participation or the matters that will be considered
or voted on at the meeting.

Whenever an individual member wishes to participate from a remote location, the
law requires a quorum of the Town Council to be physically assembled at the
primary or central meeting location, and there must be arrangements for the
voice of the remote participant to be heard by all persons at the primary or
central meeting location.

For purposes of determining a quorum when a member is participating through
electronic means, the member's remote participation shall count toward a
guorum as if the member is physically present when (1) any member participates
remotely due to a temporary or permanent disability or other medical condition
that prevents the member’s physical attendance; or (2) a medical condition of a
member of the member's family requires the member to provide care that
prevents the member’s physical attendance or when the member is a caregiver
who must provide care for a person with a disability at the time the public
meeting is being held thereby preventing the member’s physical attendance.

When such individual participation is due to a personal matter, such participation
is limited by law to two meetings or 25 percent of the meetings of the public body
per member each calendar year, whichever is fewer.

A Council member wishing to participate from a remote location in a meeting of
the Council shall notify the Mayor on or before the date of the meeting that the
Council member is unable to attend, identify with specificity the nature of the
personal matter. The Town Clerk shall record in the minutes the specific nature
of the personal matter and a general description of the remote location from
which the absent Council member participated.

During a disaster and/or declared state of emergency from the Governor or the

50




7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Section 11, ItemA.

locality in which the public body is located, and it is impracticable or unsafe for a
guorum of the Council to assemble in one location then the Council may conduct
its meetings electronically to assure the continuity of its government. (See Code
of Virginia 8§2.2-3708.2(A)(3), 844-146.17, §15.2-1413, and 844-146.21.)

Action of the Council. Action of the Council shall be taken in one of the
following ways:

1. Ordinances. Where required by law, action shall be by the adoption of
ordinances. Ordinances shall be proposed for adoption, notice given and
adoption accomplished as provided for by general law.

2. Resolutions. Where it is not required by law or desired by the Council to
act by the adoption of an ordinance, action may be taken by the adoption
of a resolution. Resolutions shall be proposed in writing, and a copy shall
be delivered to the Clerk and all members of the Council prior to the
proposal of adoption.

3. Contracts. In certain instances, action may be required by contract.
Contracts shall be proposed in writing; and a copy shall be delivered to the
Clerk and all members of Council prior to the proposing of adoption.

4, Motions. Where action of the Council is required on a matter simply
stated, action may be taken by voice vote. A call for the vote is
nondebatable and ends all discussion. The vote shall be taken
immediately.

Voting. Votes shall be taken on all motions made and seconded.

Roll Call Vote. A roll call vote shall be taken at the request of any member when
such a request is made prior to the taking up of any other business. A roll call
vote shall be taken on the final vote on any ordinance, resolution (except
congratulatory resolutions), land use, contract or money matter.

Restating the Question. The Mayor shal may restate the question prior to the
taking of a vote, however, the Mayor may request that another member restate
the question if in the Mayor’s opinion that that will expedite the decision thereof.

Consensus Items. Where no formal action is required, and no objection is
heard, a request of a member may be deemed to have a consensus of the
Council regarding the request. The deemed consensus of the Council shall be
reflected in the meeting minutes.

Tie vote. A tie vote fails. No tiebreaker is appointed. Failed votes resulting from
the lack of a quorum due to Virginia Conflict of Interest Act actual abstentions
may, in rare circumstances, be permitted to move forward pursuant to Virginia

51




7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

Section 11, ItemA.

Code Sec. 2.2-3112(D).

Second, discussion, vote. A second to a primary or substitute motion is
required to formally discuss and/or vote upon the motion. Voting shall be by voice
vote. The Mayor and Town Clerk shall summarize the vote upon conclusion of an
Action of Record, noting by individual name those Council members abstaining
or voting in the minority on the Item of Business. Actions of Record are matters
requiring the roll call vote of the members.

Motion to reconsider. If a primary or substitute motion is made at a Council
meeting where at least four (4) members are present and the motion is voted on
and fails, the same or a substantively similar motion cannot be reconsidered by
the Council during that meeting except by a primary or substitute motion to
reconsider made by a member of the Council who voted on the prevailing side
where there are no less than four (4) Council members present, and only if two-
thirds (2/3) of the Council members present vote in favor of the motion to
reconsider the action previously decided. A motion to reconsider may be made
only during the same meeting at which the subject motion was acted upon.

Motion to rescind. A motion to rescind may be made for the intent to change an
action voted upon at an earlier meeting. The motion to rescind may be made by
any member of the Council. If advance written notice is provided in the agenda of
the intent to make a motion to rescind, then a simple majority in favor is required
for it to be successful. If no advance written notice is provided, then it shall
succeed only if two-thirds (2/3) of the Board members present vote in favor of the
motion to rescind.

Abstention From Casting Vote: All members of Council present shall vote upon
all questions that a vote must be taken, unless excused by the Council (unless
the member has an immediate personal or financial interest in the matter).
Requests by a member to abstain from voting or to announce the intention
not to vote because of personal or other financial interest shall be made to the
presiding officer of Council prior to the placing of the matter before Council for
vote. Council need take no further action to allow the abstention in the case of a
member’s personal or other financial interest in the matter, consistent with the
requirements of the Virginia State and Local Government Conflict of Interests
Act.

A Council member may also abstain from a vote without further Council action if
the Council member believes that voting upon a matter may create the
appearance of a conflict of interest. The Council member shall state the general
reason that the member believes the appearance of a conflict of interest exists.

Additionally, a Council member may abstain from a vote to approve meeting
minutes without further Council action if the Council member did not attend the

52




8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Section 11, ItemA.

meeting for which minutes approval is being considered.

The Council shall consider a request to abstain from a vote for other reasons and
may grant the request if a majority of the members present (excluding the
member requesting the abstention) votes in favor of granting the request.

ARTICLE VIl - ORDER OF BUSINESS

Commencement of Meeting. All regular meetings of the Council shall begin at a
time as prescribed by the Town Council and at the specified hour for recessed or
special meetings. The Mayor, or Vice-Mayor in the Mayor's absence, shall call
the meeting to order, and direct the Clerk to note the presence or absence of
members. A quorum shall be required to commence the meeting at the appointed
hour.

Agenda. The Town Manager shall prepare an agenda for each meeting. The
Town Manager shall consult with the Mayor for any items that need to be
addressed or brought forth by the citizens of the Town of Wytheville. Any
member having matters he desires to have considered shall submit them to the
Town Manager and Mayor of the Wytheville Town Council for inclusion in the
appropriate agenda at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting where it is to be
considered. No agenda item suggested by a Town Council member shall be
placed on the agenda without it being a consensus of the Council to discuss the
matter. No matters concerning any department of the Town or agency funded by
the Town shall be considered at a Council meeting unless the matter has been
presented to the Town Manager for consideration and has been handled as all
other requests. Any emergency matter requiring Council action shall be
presented to the Town Manager prior to the meeting so that adequate
information can be provided to Council for their consideration.

Citizens’ Period. There shall be an agenda item known as Citizens’ Period to
allow Town of Wytheville citizens to address the Council regarding any matter
that is not an agenda item. Each citizen shall be allocated five (5) minutes to
address the Council. No one shall be allowed to exceed the time limit specified
in other sections of the Rules of Procedure, unless at the discretion of the Town
Council, a speaker is allowed more time to speak. Any person not a citizen of the
Town of Wytheville may request through the Town Manager to be placed on the
regular agenda.

Town Manager Reports. There may be an agenda item known as Staff Reports,
and the Town Manager shall provide his reports to the Town Council.

Administrative and Informational Matters. Administrative and Informational
Matters shall not be placed on the agenda or considered by the Council until the
interested Council member has ascertained from the Town Manager that all

53




8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

9.1

Section 11, ItemA.

administrative actions have been taken or following a request for action until an
unreasonable time has elapsed and insufficient administrative action has been
taken. Matters having to do with actions or failures to act by the Administrative
Staff shall not be placed on the agenda or considered by the Council until the
Town Manager shall have been given a reasonable opportunity to furnish the
interested member or members with an explanatory statement.

Order on Agenda. The Mayor, in consultation with the Town Manager, may
amend the order of the agenda, taking into account the need for staff or other
presentations, and probable public interest, in order to maximize convenience to
the public and minimize adverse impact on performance of normal staff functions,
insofar as it is practicable.

Minutes. The Town Clerk shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Town
Council. At the request of any member made at the time of said presentation of
discussion, the minutes shall include a summary of the substance of the
presentation or debate. The Clerk shall maintain for five years an electronic
recording of the proceedings of all Council meetings except the Closed Meetings.
An electronic copy of the minutes of the transcribed proceedings shall be kept on
file in the Town Clerk’s Office for the general public.

Approval of Minutes. The Town Clerk’s Office shall promptly transcribe the
minutes following completion of the meeting. The minutes shall be placed on the
next Council meeting agenda for approval upon their completion and review by
the Town Clerk. The minutes shall be approved or corrected and approved
without reading.

Matters Having to do With Agencies. Agencies which are not under the
administrative supervision of the Town Manager shall not be placed on the
agenda or considered by the Council until the affected agency shall have been
given a reasonable opportunity to furnish the Town Manager and interested
members of the Council with background information or data. Any department of
the Town government, agency or organization who wishes to submit a request
for funds that have not been budgeted will submit their request in writing to the
Town Manager at least ten (10) days prior to a regularly scheduled Council
meeting so that it can be placed on the agenda. Agency heads and its
employees shall not be allowed to speak during Citizens’ Period until they have
followed all the procedures set forth in this document unless the item deals with
issues outside the workplace.

ARTICLE IX - ORDER IN THE CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

Persons Addressing the Council. The time for addressing the Council will be
monitored, and the Town Council shall limit the speaking time at its discretion.
Insofar as is practicable, persons addressing the Council shall furnish the Town

54




9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.1

Section 11, ItemA.

Clerk and members of the Council with a written copy of their remarks.

Public Hearings. In instances where persons address the Town Council,
through the Mayor, without having first been placed on the agenda, they shall
limit their remarks as follows, except in extraordinary circumstances:

1. Person speaking for himself or his immediate neighborhood - Five (5)
minutes.

2. Person speaking for an organization whose membership is representative
of an entire group — Seven (7) minutes.

3. Person speaking for an organization whose membership is representative

of the entire town — Ten (10) minutes.

Recognition. Acknowledgement shall be given only by the Mayor, or the Vice-
Mayor in the Mayor’s absence. No person shall address the Council without
having first been recognized and coming forth stating their name and address.
When all public testimony has concluded, and the Council is considering and
discussing the matter, no person shall thereafter be recognized to address the
Council.

Cumulative or Repetitive Testimony. Repeating the same testimony shall not
be permitted on any matter, and persons of the same position as a previous
speaker shall state their name and the position with which they agree.

Questions. Council members shall reserve questions insofar as possible for the
end of a presentation to avoid interrupting the speaker, disrupting the time-
keeping process and duplicating ground the speaker may cover.

Discussion and Debate by the Council. Following the presentation of
testimony on the item of business pending, discussion and debates shall
proceed. Members shall not speak to the item until recognized by the Mayor,
members shall not speak more than ten minutes at one time, nor more than twice
upon the same question, without the permission of the Town Council. A member
who has spoken to the item shall not again be recognized until each other
member desiring to speak shall have an opportunity to speak. After the Council
shall have acted, any member shall have the right to state a protest against the
action, and his/her reasons therefore, for a time not to exceed two (2) minutes.
Members of the audience shall not be allowed to address the Council unless a
clarification is requested by the Mayor.

ARTICLE X - DECORUM

Decorum Of Council Members. In order to expedite disposition of the business
before the Council, questions and remarks shall be limited to those relevant to
the pending business. Members shall not converse with other members or with

10

55




10.2

Section 11, ItemA.

other persons in any manner having a disturbing effect on the conduct of
business. Consultation with Staff about the meeting is permitted, as necessary.
Members shall address all remarks to the Mayor as the presiding officer.
Members shall treat other Council members with respect and in a
courteous manner at all times. Failure to maintain decorum may result in
the Mayor, or the Vice-Mayor in the Mayor’s absence, calling the Town
Council member out of order. The Town Council also has the discretion to
adopt a resolution recognizing the member’s failure to maintain decorum
during a Town Council meeting. Please show respect when diverse
opinions are expressed.

Decorum Of Other Person(s). The Mayor, who may request such assistance as
appears necessary, shall maintain decorum at meetings. Persons addressing the
Council shall limit their remarks to those relevant to the pending items and to
answering questions. They shall address the Council as a whole, unless
answering an individual member's questions. The Mayor, or Vice-Mayor in the
Mayor’s absence, shall call the speaker to order, if out-of-order remarks or other
indecorous conduct persists, and the Mayor, or Vice-Mayor in the Mayor’s
absence, shall order the speaker from the lectern. The order with gavel, if not
heeded, will then cause a Wytheville Police Officer to carry out the order.
Persons whose allotted time to speak has expired shall be warned by the Mayor,
or the Vice-Mayor in the Mayor’s absence, to conclude in one minute, after which
such person shall leave the lectern, unless he is asked to remain to answer
guestions from the Council. No persons in attendance shall be allowed to voice
remarks except as recognized by the Mayor, or the Vice-Mayor in the Mayor’s
absence, after audibly stating their name, address and who they represent.
Groups in the audience creating an atmosphere detrimental or disturbing the
conduct of the meeting will be asked to leave by the Mayor. Taping of the
meeting shall be permitted from the rear of the Council Chambers.

ARTICLE XI = COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN TOWN COUNCIL,
TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN STAFFE

Roles. As provided in Sections 2 and 5 of the Town Charter, the government of
the Town is vested in the Town Council and its administration in the Town
Manager who directs the day-to-day operations of the Town. The Mayor of the
Town has a close working relationship with the Town Manager and helps keep
Council informed, respond to questions and honor the majority’s direction while
respecting the minority viewpoint. Council Members’ chief role is to develop good
public policy, engage and educate citizens and build trust in government.

Channels of communication. The normal channel for Town Council questions
and requests should be to the Town Management who will respond to the
member of Council with information, explanation or action, as appropriate. The

11

56




Section 11, ItemA.

Town Manager shall determine that action should be taken, if at all, after formal
consideration and vote of Council. All Town Council members are discouraged
from making irregular requests for information or services of employees without
including a member of Town Management (Town Manager, Assistant Town
Manager, Town Clerk, Town Treasurer or Town Attorney) in the request. Town
Council members shall refrain from asking Town Management and Town
staff members to perform tasks or projects until the majority of the Council
members agree that the task or project should be completed. Town Council
members shall not request Town Management or Town staff to perform any
task or project that is illegal or ethically wrong.

Official tours. All Town Council members interested in an “official tour” of
various departments of Town government to observe operations and ask
guestions are strongly requested to contact the Town Manager or Assistant Town
Manager in advance to coordinate with the Department Head and best utilize
member and staff time effectively and efficiently. An official tour or visit is one
that would likely involve meeting with more than one staff member and taking
over one hour for observation and questions.

Informal visits. Town Council members are welcome and encouraged to visit
Town departments informally to meet and greet employees from time to time, but
they are respectfully requested to limit such visits to no more than one hour.

Matters of concern. Any matter of concern brought to a Town Council member
by a citizen or employee should be promptly communicated to the Town
Management for consideration and action.

ARTICLE Xl = FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT REQUESTS

For the purposes of complying with Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests for
Council member public records, the Town shall be considered the custodian for all
Council member public record transmissions including those sent and received through
the Town’s email network.

A.

Upon the expiration of their term in office, a Council member shall provide
electronically copies of all of their public records other than those sent and
received through the Town network and related to the transaction of public
business on a thumb drive provided by the Town Information Technology
Department. This thumb drive will be provided to the Town’s FOIA Officer. The
Town’s FOIA Officer will use the copies to fulfill all further FOIA requests for
Council member emails and will maintain the copies in accordance with the
Virginia Public Records Act. For purposes of this Memorandum, “public business”
encompasses those matters over which the Wytheville Town Council has

12

57




111

11.2

11.3

114

11.5

Section 11, ItemA.

supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power.

Council members shall comply with the Library of Virginia’s Records Retention
Schedule pursuant to the Virginia Public Records Act.

Any Town Council member receiving a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)
request, whether in writing or verbally, shall send such request to the Town
appointed FOIA Officer.

ARTICLE Xl - MISCELLANEOUS

Robert’s Rules of Order. Newly revised Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern
the conduct of all meetings of the Council to the extent that they are not
inconsistent with these rules and the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The
Town Clerk shall make available at all meetings a copy of the newly revised
Robert’s Rules of Order. The failure of the Council to strictly comply with Robert’s
Rules of Order shall not invalidate any action of Council.

Amendment of the Rules. May be accomplished by a majority vote of the entire
membership, provided that such amendment may not be voted upon at any
meeting unless the text of the proposed amendment has been presented to at
least one previous meeting at which the date for a vote has also been
established. Any proposed amendment shall be subject to further amendment at
the meeting at which the vote is taken.

Suspension of the Rules. May occur whenever the Council shall by a majority
vote adopt a motion to suspend the rules with respect to the specific matter or
guestion.

Conduct with the Media. The Mayor, or the Vice-Mayor in the Mayor’'s absence,
will serve as the official spokesperson representing the position of the Council as
a whole, and individual Council members can speak to the news media on their
own behalf, but not on behalf of the Town Council. The Mayor may speak to the
news media or send a press release to the news media, if the entire Town
Council is notified and in agreement. The Town Public Information Officer(s) and
Department Heads can speak to the news media on behalf of the Town, but not
on behalf of individual Council members or the Town Council as a whole.

Conduct with Town Boards/Commissions/Authorities. The following shall
apply to the Mayor and Council members who attend Board, Commission and
Authority meetings when not a member of the Board, Commission and Authority.
The Mayor and Council members should be careful not to express personal
opinions when asked. The Mayor and Council members should sit in the
audience as other members of the public. The presence of an elected official
changes the dynamic of a meeting and the free flow of conversation. The Mayor

13

58




Section 11, ItemA.

and Council members should limit contact with the Town Board, Commission and
Authority members to only questions for clarification and should not lobby. The
Town Boards, Commissions and Authorities serve the community and not
individual Council members. Please show respect when diverse opinions are
expressed.

11.6 Endorsement of Candidates and Campaigning During Meetings. Council
members, as individuals, have the right to endorse candidates for elected offices.
It is inappropriate to mention endorsements during Council meetings or other
Town official meetings. Council members campaigning on behalf of themselves
should not campaign during Council meetings.

Adopted this  day of , 2025

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Attest:

Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager

Adoption/Revision Dates:

Adopted August 8, 2022
Revised/Adopted January 23, 2023
Revised/Adopted July 8, 2024
Revised/Adopted January 21, 2025

G:\COUNCIL\Othen\Town Council Rules of Procedure Proposed September 2025.docx

14

59




Section 11, ItemB.

60




Section 11, ItemB.

WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

Meeting Date: September 8, 2025
Subject: Boom Flail Tractor
SUMMARY:

Councilwoman Atkins has requested that the Town Council hold further discussion regarding
the purchase of a boom flail tractor for the Public Works Department. As the Council may recall,

this matter was reviewed and voted upon at the July 29, Town Council work session.

Recommended Action

No action required at this time.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\090825\Agenda Info - Boom Flail Tractor.docx

61




SERIES 7 |

-
-

")

n bl
N

1
Sy

: .
\J‘ r/ﬂl'.nr#l.fi!

¢

1
i
|
5|

e,

TRACKLESS VEHICLES

BOOM FLAIL MOWER

The Trackless Boom Flail Mower is perfect for those difficult,
unsafe or impossible areas to mow. Ditches, steep inclines,
over guard raifs and waters-edge are areas in which the boom
flail excels. Hydrostatic speed control allows the operator to
react to oncoming obstacles for optimum safety and
productivity.

Canbe removed from the Trackless MT in approximately 10
minutes. Within minutes another attachment can be instatled,
and the operator can be on the way to another job site.

General Info
Width of cut: 431" overall width of head 531" Below grade cut: 53"
Horizontal reach: 13%' from center of MT to outside cut Vertical reach: 13%'
Overall level ground cutting coverage: 117, starting 5" inside outer tire Cutting blades: 33




Section 11, ItemB.

704-289-6488 N\

jjei.com =
Joe Johnson

Equipment info@jjei.com &
4519 Old Charlotte Hwy. Monroe NC 28110

9

July 17, 2025

Town of Wytheville
852 Atkins Mill Rd
Wytheville, VA 24382

RE: 2023 STOCK TRACKLESS MT7 ARTICULATING ALL-SEASON TRACTOR & BOOM FLAIL
MOWER ATTACHMENT QUOTATION
Dear Bryan,

We would like to thank you for your interest in Joe Johnson Equipment (JJE) and our 2023 Stock Trackless
MT7 and Boom Flail Mower Attachment.

We are pleased to present the following quotation to supply One (1) 2023 Stock Trackless MT7 Articulating
All-Season Tractor and Boom Flail Mower.

Please review the quotation at your convenience. We look forward to assisting with this equipment requirement
and ask that you not hesitate to contact us should additional information be required.

Respectfully submitted,

P Durng U dlion

Danny Wilson

Regional Sales Manager
Joe Johnson Equipment
Cell: (828)610-3100

dwilson(@jjeusa.com

Clean Air. Clean Water. Clean Streets.

63




Section 11, ItemB.

704-289-6488 N\
jjei.com

Joe Johnson
Equipment info@jjei.com X
4519 Old Charlotte Hwy. Monroe NC 28110

Quotation Q

To provide one (1) 2023 Trackless MT7 tractor, standard-equipped as detailed below:

Engine:
® John Deere - Tier 4 final
e 74 BHP @ 2500 RPM, turbo charged
e 4.5 Litre (275 cu. in.)
e Torque 224 Ib-ft. @ 1,600 RPM
e Equipped with anti-idle feature, cold start aid, block heater and air breather warning lamp
e Large capacity air breather with direct connection to pre-cleaner
e Automatic reversing engine fan

e  Front PTO 1-3/8" spline, 540 RPM
Twin Disc over center clutch with electric over hydraulic actuation
e Reduction box 4:1

Hitches
e  Trackless quick hitch with dual lift cylinders

Powertrain:

e  Sauer Danfoss hydrostatic/electronic transmission and motot

e Controlled by electronic truck style foot pedal programmed to control hydrostatic independently or
both engine RPM and hydrostatic simultaneously

e Trackless mechanical transmission with high/ low range and neutral

e Dana Style Model 60 full float axles with new heavy duty alloy spindles.

e Limited slip differentials 7,000 Ibs. capacity

Hydraulic Systems:
e 20 GPM hydraulic gear pump driven by timing gears of engine
e 14 GPM secondary hydraulic gear pump
e Low hydraulic oil warning

Six (3 pair) low volume front hydraulic couplers for attachment control

e Two (1 pait) high volume hydraulic couplers to power attachments requiring approximately 16 GPM
e Two (1 pair) additional ports in front of cab for addition of optional second high flow circuit
e Two (1 pair) high volume hydraulic couplers at rear of tractor
e Cartridge type hvdraulic filter mounted at highest point in system to allow dry changes
e  Steel hydrostatic lines
Braking Systems:

e  Hydrostatic dynamic braking programmed for smooth deceleration
e Hydraulic service brakes on all 4 wheels

Clean Air. Clean Water. Clean Streets.

64




Section 11, ItemB.

704-289-6488 N\

P
el.com =/

Joe Johnson o
Equipment info@jjei.com &

4519 Old Charlotte Hwy. Monroe NC 28110

©

Service brake application also activates more aggressive hydrostatic braking
Mechanical parking brake with warning buzzer

Steering:

Articulated steering, 35° each way

Turning radius approximately 8’ inside

Steering column includes hazard button, signal lever and centre mounted horn
High strength spherical bearings for pivot pins and steering pins

Greaseable bearings and pins greaseable

Load sensing steering. Ol is only circulated to the steering cylinder when needed. This creates less
heating for the hydraulic oil

Capacities

Lights:
[ ]

Fuel Tank - 92 litres (24 US gallons)
Coolant Tank - 22 litres (6 gallons)
Hydraulic Oil Tank - 76 litres (20 gallons)

Speeds:

Low range: 0 to 12 km
High range: 0 to 30 km

Four (4) halogen headlights

One (1) halogen backup light

‘Two (2) rubber mounted shockproof LED tail lights
One (1) interior dome light

LED Front and rear signal lights and 4-way flashers
Eight (8) amber strobe lights with branch guard
High beams

Extetior Finish:

All steel components including cab prepped in 5-stage phosphate wash, 2 part epoxy primer with rust
inhibitor
2 part polyurethane automotive top coat, oven baked

Latches, linkages, levers, battery hold down straps and bolts, support rods, striker plate, shifter gate
and various small brackets zinc plated

Colour highway yellow and black trim, grey/black interior

Cab Features:

Certified Rollover Protection Structure (ROPS) cab, steel roof with rain gutters
Completely redesigned ergonomic cab interior

Digital dash with full color monitor: tachometer, speedometer, hour meter, fuel level, engine coolant
temp, hydraulic oil temp, engine oil pressure, voltmeter. Included color back up camera

Clean Air. Clean Water. Clean Streets.

65




Section 11, ItemB.

704-289-6488 o

ee _®
Joe Johnson jiei.com
Equipment info@jjei.com &

4519 Old Charlotte Hwy. Monroe NC 28110

v

e Full climate control with ait conditioning with 12 vents in total, defroster, 7 speed auxiliary heater
and cab pressurizer with fresh air intake. Cab temperature will remain constant when set

Two (2) outside and one (1) inside rear view mirror

AM/EM stereo, dual speakers and external aerial with amplifier

Cell phone holder, door pocket and storage tray

Gas strut door cylinder and safety strap

Tilt steering column with hotn, self-cancelling signal lever and hazard button
DOT approved tinted tempered safety glass

Left and right side slider windows

Intermittent front wiper and washer

Rear wiper and washer

Conaflex sound deadening, sound barrier floor matting
Outside Cab Sound: 64 dBA at 50°. Qutside Cab Sound: 74 dBA
High back, fabric covered air ride seat with lumbar support and 3-point retractable orange seat belt

Air ride seat switch is remote mounted in the switch panel for easy access

Adjustable left arm rest and large padded right armrest

Joystick - heavy duty base and pivot, wide sweep angle and forward, neutral, reverse switch (F-N-R)
Main float switch is right beside FNR

Joystick control with 8 backlit membrane switches.

e Three (3) float position switches also have additional LED indicator light. Switches color coded to
circuits

e Joystick selector switch to automatically configures joystick for attachments

e A new joystick function feature allows operator to move both 5>-way plow wings together at the same
time

Exterior Features:
e All steel, quick release hoods, two hinged access doors
e No tools required to remove side hoods, rear grille and top hood
e Lighter top hood manufactured from aluminum for easier lifting
e Rear grille can hinge up and slide sideways for quick removal to allow cleaning of radiator or oil
coolet
e One side service - all daily checks and all filters are on the driver’s side, where there are hinged access

doors. For convenience as well as to eliminate having to access the engine compartment on the right
side where the DPF, DOC and the complete exhaust system is located.

¢ Large bearing Centre frame vs. old centre frame liner
e Heavy duty 10 gauge steel fenders

Electrical:
e Multiplex electrical: 70% less wiring with enhanced diagnostics
e On board Self-Diagnostics computer checks all systems and determines causes of any faults
e 950 CCA Group 31 battery, 200 amp alternator
e Battery disconnect switch and remote battery terminal
e Hinged overhead switch panel

Clean Air. Clean Water. Clean Streets.

66




Section 11, ItemB.

704-289-6488 N\
e »
jjei.com =
Joe Johnson
Equipment info@jjei.com h¥(
4519 Old Charlotte Hwy. Monroe NC 28110
e  Main circuit breaker protection v

o  Mini blade fuses mounts in IP67 watertight enclosure
e  Variable flow sander switch
e Sander Auto / Run switch

Tires and Wheels
e LT 245/75R x 16, 10-ply radial winter tires on HD 16" 8-bolt rims

Safety Features:
o  Neutral safety start switch
¢ Automatic hydraulic power shut off and PTO shut down: If operator leaves seat
e Automatic engine shut down: If operator leaves seat with shifter not in neutral position
e Automatic hydraulic power shut off: If rotary mower wings ate raised
Articulation lock

e  External lift cylinder switch for attachment hook up

e A wire protection guard encloses the engine fan.

o Reflective striping on both sides, rear of tractor, rear hood and below tail lights
®

Safety, danger, caution and pinch point decals
e Backup alarm automatically activated by the F-N-R Switch lever

Additional Options Included:
e License Plate Bracket & Light
e Sunvisor
e [ligh Range Travel Lockout
e Ride Control Option
e LED Headlights & B/U Light
e LED Dome Light
¢  Front Flail (NEW)
e Boom Flail Mower (Requires dual loader lug tires) - Comes with Window Guard
e DUAL LOADER LUG TIRE & RIMS (8 TIRES WITH RIMS AND HARDWARE) (NEW)
e Dual loader lug tires / no radial tires.

Purchase Price (USED TRACKLESS).....cccooiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiciinc e $152,713.83

Putrchase Price for NEW TRACKLESS. ... cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiieeisiieeniitiiienneesisaae $197,265.00

Terms & Conditions
*Strictly Subject to Availability and Prior Sale¥
*Subject to revision based on events beyond our control due to wildly fluctuating material prices*
Pricing in USD. taxes and fees to be paid at time of tag & title if applicable Price Includes PDI., delivery and training
Payment Terms: Due upon receipt—----Purchase order required Delivery: To be confirmed at time of order
Quotation valid for 7 days
Stock #UA030777 & UB004776

Clean Air. Clean Water. Clean Streets.

67




Section 11, ItemB.

Sul)ject. : ess Vehicle Questions
Date: Thursday, July 31, 2025 3:45:43 PM
Importance: High

Sent: Wednesday, July 30, 2025 9:32 AM

To:
c

Subject: Trackless Vehicle Questions
Importance: High

Mr. Hackler,
Regarding the July 17 quote that you provided.

1. Does the purchase price for the used demo model trackless tractor and boom flail mower
attachment ($152,712.83), include a warranty. If so please explain or attach warranty
information to your response.

Email from April. Following our conversation yesterday regarding the warranty request on your
Trackless MT7-2030 Demo Unit, here is what we would like to offer as warranty on that unit:

® Joe Johnson USA — Trackless MT7 — Stock / Demo Unit

® S/N MT7-2020

® +/-58 hours ( this email was from April, see below for current hours and miles)

® +/-56 miles
Trackless will offer a 1 year warranty (total of 12 months) “Parts Only” major power train
components only.
Power train components consist of the Axles, Gearboxes (mechanical & gear reduction), PTO clutch,
Hydrostatics (pump & motor).
Exclusions from warranty; any machine which has been altered in any way so as, in the judgment of
Trackless Vehicles, to affect its reliability or which has been subject to misuse, negligence or
accident.

68




Section 11, ItemB.

The warranty period starts when the customer takes delivery of the machine and ends 12 months
from that date. Warranty does not include labor, travel, mileage, meals & lodging, which Trackless
Vehicles does not cover.

2. How many hours does the used demo model have on it at this time? The demo unit as of

7/31/2025 has 78.1 miles and 77.4 hr. subject to change if it is needed for a demonstration it may go up.

3. Does the purchase price for the new trackless tractor and boom flail mower attachment
($197,265) include a warranty? If so please explain or attach warranty information to your
response. Standard Trackless Warranty for a new unit is 12 months or 600 hours,

whichever occurs first.

Elaine R. Holeton, AICP, CFM, CZA
Assistant Town Manager
Town of Wytheuville, VA

69




Section 11, ItemD.

70




Town of Wytheville
September 2025

Section 11, ItemD.

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
All meetings are held | { 2 3 4 5 6
in the Municipal
Building unless HOLIDAY - TOWN 10:00 AM - Safety
otherwise noted. OFFICES CLOSED and Events
Committee

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

5:30 PM - Council

Work Session 6:00 PM - Planning

6:00 PM - Town Commission

Council Meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20

5:30 PM - DTW 12:00 PM - Housing 10:00 AM - NRRWA 10:00 AM —

(DTW Office) Authority (HA Office) (NRRWA Plant) Homestead Museum

6:00 PM - District Ill Gg‘c'l'éggyp?gﬁggy)
(Marion Office)

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

6:00 PM - Toyvn

Council Meeting 3:00 PM - JIDA
28 29 30 CALENDAR

SUBJECT TO

CHANGE

71




	Top
	Section 7, ItemA.	Minutes of the work session and regular meeting of August 25, 2025, and minutes of the work session of August 26, 2025
	7-A
	082525 -Work Session Minutes - UNAPPROVED
	082525 - Regular Council Minutes - Unapproved
	082625 - Council Work Session Minutes - UNAPPROVED

	Section 9, ItemA.	McDaniel WRHA Reappointment
	9-A
	Agenda Info - WRHA Reappointment

	Section 9, ItemB.	Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee Appointment
	9-B
	Agenda Info - Tree Advisory Committee
	WILLIAMS, DEREK - TREE COMM APPLICATION_Redacted

	Section 9, ItemC.	Art at the Crossroads Request
	9-C
	Agenda Info - Art at the Crossroads Event
	ART AT THE CROSSROADS APPLICATION - Redacted
	ART AT THE CROSSROADS MAP - 101825

	Section 9, ItemD.	Resolution - Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project
	9-D
	Agenda Info - Lithia Road Connector Project Resolution
	Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project 2025

	Section 10, ItemA.	Upcoming Meetings
	10-A
	Agenda Info - Upcoming Meetings
	Upcoming Meetings - 090825

	Section 11, ItemA.	Town Council Rules of Procedure
	11-A
	Agenda Info - Town Council Rules of Procedure for 2025
	Town Council Rules of Procedure Proposed September 2025

	Section 11, ItemB.	Boom Flail Tractor
	11-B
	Agenda Info - Boom  Flail Tractor
	boom flail mower
	BOOM FLAIL MOWER QUOTE
	FW_ Trackless Vehicle Questions_Redacted

	Section 11, ItemD.	Miscellaneous
	11-D
	September 2025

	Bottom

